IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 70,812

BROWARD COUNTY, a political subdivision of the state of Florida,

Appellant,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA AND THE SEVERAL PROPERTY OWNERS, TAXPAYERS AND CITIZENS OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, INCLUDING NONRESIDENTS OWNING PROPERTY OR SUBJECT TO TAXATION THEREIN, AND OTHERS HAVING OR CLAIMING ANY RIGHT, TITLE OR INTEREST IN PROPERTY TO BE AFFECTED BY THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS HEREIN DESCRIBED, OR TO BE AFFECTED THEREBY,

Appellees.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

ALAN C. SUNDBERG
Carlton, Fields, Ward, Emmanuel,
Smith, Cutler & Kent, P.A.
Suite 410

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant, Broward County, was the Plaintiff in the proceeding before the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit (the "Circuit Court") in and for Broward County, Florida. Appellee, the State of Florida and the Several Property Owners, Taxpayers and Citizens of Broward County, were the Defendants. South Broward Citizens for a Better Environment, Inc. and Bruce Head joined the State as Intervenors. The parties will be referred to as the "County," the "State" and the "Intervenors," respectively. The symbol A. will refer to the Appendix.

This Brief is submitted on behalf of the County. The County has taken this appeal from a final judgment and order of the Circuit Court dismissing the complaint for revalidation of \$521,175,000 Broward County Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds.

Jurisdiction is vested in the Supreme Court of Florida pursuant to Article V, § 3(b)(2), Florida Constitution, Section 75.08, Florida Statutes, as amended, and Rule 9.030(a)(1)(B)(i) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

By this Appeal, the County seeks review of a final judgment and order of the Circuit Court dismissing, without the requisite statutory hearing, a Complaint for Validation, filed February 27, 1987, on the grounds that the County failed to join certain bondholders as indispensable The bonds at issue in the present case were initially the subject of a validation proceeding in 1984 at which time the Circuit Court validated approximately \$590,000,000 of Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds") under Chapter 166, Florida Statutes. The Circuit Court judgment was affirmed by this Court, in an opinion appearing at 468 So.2d 965 (Fla. The decisions of both the Circuit Court and this Court required 1985). revalidation of the Bonds prior to their conversion to industrial development bonds under Chapter 159, Florida Statutes (See 468 So.2d at Issues raised in this second validation proceeding have necessitated this appeal.

A. Prior Validation History

Broward County officials have worked toward solving the waste disposal problems of Broward County over an extensive period of time. The Broward County Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") first undertook consideration of alternative solid waste disposal methods as early as the late 1970s and in 1982 retained consulting engineers, Malcolm Pirnie, Inc., ("Malcolm Pirnie"), to conduct a detailed study of the problem. Malcolm Pirnie issued a report on alternative waste disposal technologies

and recommended that the County build mass-burning incineration systems. Malcolm Pirnie also evaluated potential landfill and resource recovery sites. They informed the County that one of the two existing disposal sites, the Davie Landfill, would reach capacity by December 31, 1987, with no further opportunity to obtain extension permits. They noted that the second landfill is expected to be exhausted by the early 1990s. With the exhaustion of both sites, Malcolm Pirnie noted that the waste disposal problems of the County would be of crisis proportions (See A. Ex. 30 at Given this situation the Board sought proposals for planning a viable waste disposal alternative to landfilling which would (1) convert waste into energy and thereby minimize the critical need for actual landfill sites and (2) pay for itself through a combination of service charges and electricity revenues. The County determined that the best way to finance such a resource recovery facility would be on a tax-free basis under the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended (the "1954 Code"), and the Public Utilities Regulatory Policies Act of 1978. Pub. L. 95-617, 92 Stat. 3117 (1978). In accordance with the requirements of the 1954 Code, on April 19, 1984, the Board adopted Resolution 84-964, declaring its intention to provide financing for certain waste-to-energy facilities and landfills (the "Projects") by issuing up to \$590,000,000 of industrial

^{1.} A description of the steps taken to authorize and validate the Bonds under Chapter 166 of the Florida Statutes is contained in the Complaint for Validation filed with the Circuit Court on February 27, 1987 (See A. Ex. 2). The contents of that Complaint have not yet been addressed by the Circuit Court on the merits.

development bonds under Chapter 159, Florida Statues. See generally A. Ex. 20 at 1-5.

As observed by this Court in its opinion affirming the earlier validation decision, changes in the Federal tax laws intervened and required a restructuring of the financing:

In response [to the changes in the Federal tax laws], the County developed a two-step plan of financing. Because it was vital that the bonds be issued by December 31, 1984, the County would first issue revenue bonds under Chapter 166 and secure the payment of principal and interest by investing the bond proceeds in the United States securities. County would then continue to proceed with the project. In the second phase, if the resource recovery plants are sold, leased, or operated by a private vendor, the present revenue bonds would be converted after notice and a full validation hearing to industrial development revenue bonds under chapter 159. If, however, the project is abandoned for any reason, the County proposed to redeem these revenue bonds, and any deficiency would be paid by the issuance of special obligation bonds.

State v. Broward County, 468 So.2d 965, 967 (Fla. 1985). The County then proceeded to validate the Bonds to be issued under this new structure. By judgment rendered on October 24, 1984, the Circuit Court (Polen, J.) held that:

- 2. The Bonds have been duly authorized for proper public purposes and in the manner as required by law and when issued as provided by the Resolution and as authorized by Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, will be valid and binding obligations of the County in accordance with their terms. . . .
- 5. The County is authorized under Section 166.111, Florida Statutes, to issue the Bonds secured as to the payment of principal and interest by a pledge of the principal and interest coming due on Governmental Obligations . . . to be purchased from a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds. . . .

10. The County shall, prior to converting the Bonds to obligations payable solely from revenues derived from the sale, operation or leasing of the Project, in accordance with Chapter 159, Florida Statutes, validate such Bonds and the contractual and financing arrangements made to secure the same. In such proceeding, notice shall be provided to counsel of record in this cause. . . .

Broward County v. State, No. 84-375730, slip op. at 8-9 (Fla. 17th Cir.Ct. Oct. 24, 1984). The judgment of the Circuit Court was appealed to this Court.

On November 21, 1984, Brown & Wood, in its capacity as bond counsel for the County, pursuant to the County's request and in order to comply with the requirements of the 1954 Code, filed articles of incorporation for two Florida corporations, North Broward County Resource Recovery Project, Inc. and South Broward County Resource Recovery Project, Inc. These two corporations were established with three Brown & Wood attorneys serving as non-compensated directors to conduct the public hearing required by the 1954 Code and to help the County in obtaining permits and licenses for the project sites while negotiations with the vendors proceeded. A public hearing required by the 1954 Code was held on December 10, 1984.

^{2.} If the control of the corporations was not retained by the County or its agents but was prematurely given to the vendors, the County would lose necessary bargaining leverage in negotiations. In order to retain control over the public hearing rights under the 1954 Code and the permits and licenses, it was decided that the three original directors will remain the directors until such time as the County allows the Bond proceeds to be spent on construction costs of the project by noticing a "Construction Funds Designation Date," at which time the two Florida corporations will be assigned or transferred, without charge or expense, to the vendors.

On December 18, 1984, the Board adopted Resolution 84-3097 authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and the terms and provisions thereof, which Resolution was confirmed and ratified by Resolution 84-3113 adopted by the Board on December 20, 1984. On December 27, 1984, with the appeal of the validation judgment pending, the County issued its \$521,175,000 of resource recovery bonds in three series. Official Statements, dated December 18, 1984 (the "Official Statements") were provided to all Bond purchasers in conjunction with the issuance and sale of the Bonds.

The Official Statements fully disclose the two-step nature of the transaction and outline the protections to be afforded the Bondholders (see A. Ex. 30 at 3-22). The Official Statements provide that under Chapter 166, before project vendors are selected and funds are committed to commence project construction (the "Construction Funds Designation Date"), the Bonds will be secured by a pledge of all Bond proceeds with a simultaneous prohibition against any use of those proceeds other than for payment of principal and interest on the Bonds. The Official Statements also explain to the Bondholders that prior to the Construction Funds Designation Date the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be continually invested and reinvested in certain United States government obligations (the "Covernment Obligations"). It notes that the excess earnings received from

^{3.} The Bonds were issued in three series--1984A, 1984B and 1984C. Where language is quoted from the Bonds or the Official Statements, the Series 1984A language is used. The Series 1984B and 1984C language differs only by reference to those series instead of Series 1984A.

these investments over and above the amounts required to pay current Bond interest will be placed in the Excess Earnings Holding Account, which further secures the Bonds (A. Ex. 30 at 18-19). (To date, excess earnings exceed \$20 million. See A. Ex. 31 at 2.)

The Official Statements provide that, at such time as the necessary arrangements are made with the private project operators, the prohibitions against the use of the proceeds will end, the security for the Bonds will cease to be the Government Obligations and the security will become instead the revenues derived from the sale, operation or leasing of the Projects constructed with the Bond proceeds. Prior to this substitution of collateral, each Bondholder can elect to continue to hold the Bonds or to tender the Bonds for payment in full of principal and accrued interest. The notice provisions set forth in the Official Statements require the present Bondholders to affirmatively respond to this notice of election or their Bonds will be deemed tendered at a purchase price equal to the principal plus any accrued interest (A. Ex. 30 at 6-7; A. Ex. 31). Bondholders will have to affirmatively elect to continue to hold the Bonds once there is a substitution of security and the Bonds are validated under Chapter 159.

The Official Statements also included a section on validation which noted that the State and certain citizens were appealing the initial validation order of the Circuit Court (A. Ex. 30 at 46). Given the pendency of that appeal, the County did not include on the form of Bond delivered to the Bondholders any statement or certification as to validation

as is usually the case in bond financings in Florida. In addition, the Supplement to the Official Statements, delivered to the Bondholders in November 1986, informed the Bondholders of the anticipated revalidation proceedings (See A. Ex. 32).

By decision rendered on April 11, 1985, this Court affirmed the judgment of the Circuit Court. See State v. Broward County, 468 So.2d 965 (Fla. 1985). In affirming the judgment, this Court stated:

The State argues that permitting the County to proceed under the authority of section 166.111 in the present case circumvents the purpose of article VII, section 10(c), Florida Constitution, and chapter 159, part II. We disagree. Although these plants, if constructed, are intended to be either sold to or operated by a private vendor, the bonds in this proceeding are merely the first step in a complex financing scheme. Any such sale or lease which requires compliance with chapter 159 will be addressed at that time.

* * *

It is important to note at this point that we review only the issuance of revenue bonds by the County under section 166.111, Florida Statutes (1983), despite any future intention of the County to convert these bonds to industrial development revenue bonds authorized and secured under chapter 159, part II. Subsequent aspects of this financing plan are not before this court, and the County's authority to issue chapter 159 bonds is not determined at this time.

<u>Id</u>. at 967. Thus, this Court affirmed the decision of the Circuit Court and approved the two-step procedure for validation and issuance (and subsequent conversion) of the Bonds, provided the revalidation of the Bonds under Chapter 159 takes place, as is now sought by the County.

The State sought unsuccessfully a rehearing of the decision of this Court affirming the final judgment of the Circuit Court, seeking to revisit

the issue of the propriety of the County proceeding under Chapter 166 by contending that the outstanding bonds had been sold misrepresentations of their status as municipal revenue bonds as opposed to industrial development revenue bonds. This misrepresentation argument had been first raised by the State at oral argument and was rejected by this Court when it "[found] no merit in any of the other arguments raised by Appellants." Id. at 969. This Court made that decision after reviewing, among other things, the Official Statements which contained the alleged misrepresentations. Rehearing on these issues was denied by this Court.

B. Current Validation Proceedings

In accordance with the prior validation decisions, the County filed the Complaint for Validation on February 27, 1987 (the "Complaint") seeking to validate the Bonds under Chapter 159. The Complaint describes the prior validation proceedings and notes that, as a result of those proceedings, the County would be required to validate the Bonds, and the contractual and financing arrangements in connection therewith, prior to the conversion of the security for the Bonds from the Government Obligations presently securing the Bonds to revenues to be derived from the operation, sale, lease and use of the Projects. The Complaint also notes that the County is authorized to finance solid waste facilities under Chapter 159 and states with particularity the actions taken in accordance with Chapter 159 (A. Ex. 2 at 4, 5, 35, 36). On March 4, 1987, an Order to Show Cause was issued by the Circuit Court establishing a validation hearing date of April 6, 1987 (A. Ex. 3).

Pursuant to Section 75.05, Florida Statutes, the County served the Complaint on the State Attorney on March 6, 1987 and published notice of the hearing as required by Section 75.06. (Additionally, and as directed by this and the Circuit Court, the County served all counsel of record in the earlier proceeding.) The State Attorney responded with an Answer on behalf of the named defendants on March 11, 1987. On March 20, 1987, the Intervenors filed a motion to dismiss alleging that the County failed to attach the exhibits referred to in the Complaint and alleging that the Complaint had been prematurely filed (A. Ex. 5). A hearing was held in the Circuit Court on March 27, 1987 at which time the Assistant State Attorney sought a continuance of 30 days arguing that she would need more time to prepare because the proceeding is so complicated, even though she had acted on behalf of the State in the prior related proceeding. County objected to any extension of time and in particular objected to a 30-day extension, because it noted that delay would increase the County's costs and was contrary to the intent of Chapter 75, Florida Statutes. Circuit Court nonetheless adjourned the hearing to May 8, 1987. That hearing has never been held. During the course of the March 27 hearing, the Circuit Court also raised, in passing and sua sponte, the issue of whether the Chapter 166 Bondholders must be joined as indispensable parties in this proceeding (A. Ex. 7 at 3, 22, 23).

On March 31, 1987, the Intervenors filed interrogatories and a request for admissions and made a motion to expedite discovery stating that time was of the essence in this case (A. Ex. 8). On April 6, 1987, a hear-

ing was held to inform all parties of the continuance. At that hearing the County objected to the Intervenors' discovery requests as unprecedented in bond validation proceedings. (The State, while conceding that it had never engaged in discovery in a bond validation proceeding, contended that neither it nor the Intervenors were precluded from taking discovery.) The County also stated that the discovery requested by the Intervenors related to matters collateral to the bond validation proceeding, since it inquired as to the validity of the County's determination regarding the feasibility of the Projects. Nevertheless, the Circuit Court granted the Intervenors' motion for discovery and allowed them to submit an additional 75 interrogatories (A. Ex. 9 at 5, 9, 19, 31, 34). On April 8, the Intervenors amended their Motion to Dismiss and moved to dismiss the Complaint for failure of the County to name the Bondholders as indispensable parties (A. Ex. 10).

The County filed a Memorandum in Support of Validation on April 17, 1987. On April 24, 1987, the State moved to compel the production of records and documents by the County, filed requests for admissions and interrogatories, and filed a Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings for failure to join the bondholders as indispensable parties in this proceeding (A. Ex. 13). On May 1, 1987, the State made a motion to impose on the County the State's costs to retain an expert witness to testify against the County at the hearing scheduled for May 8, 1987. On May 1, 1987 the County filed a motion to admit Brown & Wood, its bond counsel, as foreign counsel in the present action. On May 4, 1987, the County filed amended Answers to Intervenors' Interrogatories.

At a hearing on May 5, 1987, the Court granted the unprecedented motion by the State allowing the State to hire, at the County's expense, an expert witness to contest the feasibility of a solid waste mass-burn facility without citing its authority for doing so. (During the discussion on the motion, the Court nonetheless reserved the right to find the expert testimony irrelevant, recognizing that it would address collateral issues. See A. Ex. 16 at 17.)

Next, the Court considered the County's motion for the appearance of Brown & Wood as foreign counsel. That firm had been allowed to appear in the initial validation, without objection, in this Court. The Intervenors objected to this motion erroneously alleging that members of Brown & Wood had a pecuniary interest in the project vendors. The Intervenors also alleged that entering into such a transaction on behalf of the County presented a conflict of interest and a violation of the Florida Code of Professional Responsibility. Although the County contested the misrepresentations of the Intervenors, the Circuit Court accepted the Intervenor's representations of facts and denied the motion (A. Ex. 16 at 12).

^{4.} On May 18, 1987, the County submitted a Motion for Reconsideration of the issue together with a memorandum of law demonstrating the inapplicability of the cases cited by the Circuit Court and an affidavit of a member of Brown & Wood stating that no attorney owned any interest in or received any compensation from the project vendors. The Circuit Court nonetheless denied the motion for rehearing on June 1, 1987. This denial of the motion necessitated a petition by the County to the District Court of Appeal for a writ of certiorari to reverse the Circuit Court's decision. The District Court, recognizing the need for an expeditious resolution of the bond validation proceeding, issued an order, sua sponte, establishing an abbreviated time frame for filing papers in connection with the petition.

Finally, the Court considered the State's Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings and the Intervenors' Amended Motion for Dismissal for the County's alleged failure to join the Bondholders as indispensable parties. The County had provided the Court a memorandum of law supporting its position that Bondholders are not parties contemplated by the validation statute and need not be (and, in fact, have not been) parties to bond validation proceedings. The County also presented the Affidavit of Alan D. Marks, a representative of the Remarketing Agent for the Bonds. affidavit explained the protections provided the Bondholders and why they have no right or interest to be determined or jeopardized in the revalidation of the Bonds. The County also noted that as a practical matter it would be impossible to join the Bondholders, who are numerous and geographically diverse, as parties (A. Ex. 16 at 41). Nevertheless on May 8, 1987, the Circuit Court issued an Order dismissing the Complaint with 30 days leave to amend to name the Bondholders as defendants.

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