0/a 8-31-87

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 70,812

REF CASE NO.: 87-05446CH "J" ANDREWS \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

BROWARD COUNTY, a political subdivision of the state of Florida,

Appellant,

Real of the

La James

pl

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA AND THE SEVERAL PROPERTY OWNERS, TAXPAYERS AND CITIZENS OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, INCLUDING NONRESIDENTS OWNING PROPERTY OR SUBJECT TO TAXATION THEREIN, AND OTHERS HAVING OR CLAIMING ANY RIGHT, TITLE OR INTEREST IN PROPERTY TO BE AFFECTED BY THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS HEREIN DESCRIBED, OR TO BE AFFECTED THEREBY,

Appellees.

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE, STATE OF FLORIDA

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The State maintains that the Circuit Court properly reviewed all issues presented it, and correctly determined that the bondholders are indispensible since their rights/interests are to be litigated in the bond validation proceeding below.

The Circuit Court was not collaterally estopped from reviewing whether the bonds were purportedly issued as Ch. 159 bonds since this issue was never litigated previously. In any event, the County has not preserved this issue for appeal.

Further, throughout its argument, the County is attempting to mislead this Court by ignoring the substance of the Circuit Court's ruling by concentrating solely on only one of may grounds for that decision.

The Circuit Court made the correct decision to require joinder of bondholders during preliminary proceedings which is the appropriate procedure pursuant to Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, and is not precluded by Chapter 75, F.S. To the contrary, the issue of indispensible parties must necessarily be decided prior to the evidentiary bond validation proceeding. Furthermore, the County is estopped from arguing that only one hearing of any type is allowed in bond validation proceedings, since it made a pre-trial motion and caused a hearing to be held on that motion. Further, the County has not preserved that issue for appeal.

#### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I

THE STATE AND INTERVENORS ARE NOT ATTEMPTING TO RELITIGATE ISSUES ALREADY DETERMINED BY THIS COURT

#### A. This Court Lacks Jurisdiction Over this Appeal.

The State initially maintains that this Court is without jurisdiction to entertain the instant appeal of the Circuit Court's non-appealable and non-final Orders (CA 35; CA1).

On May 7, 1987, the Circuit Court entered its Order Granting Motions to Dismiss with leave for the County to amend within thirty days to join bondholders as parties defendant (CA 35). An order granting a <u>motion</u> to dismiss with leave to amend, or even with prejudice, is not final and not appealable. <u>Gries Inv. Co. v. Shelton</u>, 388 So.2d 1281 (Fla. 3d DCA 1980); <u>Lawler v. Harris</u>, 418 So.2d 1239 (Fla. 5th DCA 1982). For appeal purposes, a further act of the Court - the dismissal - is required for finality. 388 So.2d 1282.

The Circuit Court below clearly intending to enter an appealable order, entered its Order and Final Judgment on June 29, 1987 stating ". . . this Court, sua sponte, for the purposes of appeal, makes final the order entered dismissing this action without prejudice . . . " (CA 1). This Order does not specifically dismiss the action, but rather, attempts to make final the previous Order Granting Motions to Dismiss. In order to be appealable, the Circuit Court must enter its final order dismissing the action. <u>Gruen v.</u> <u>State</u>, 451 So.2d 525 (Fla. 3d DCA 1984; <u>Bishop v. Kelly</u>, 404 So.2d 1149 (Fla. 5th DCA 1981).

However, the State has not made a motion to dismiss this appeal on this impropriety, but rather, requests this Court relinquish jurisdiction to the trial court for entry of the dismissal. 388 So.2d 1282.

## B. This Issue is not Preserved for Appeal.

In any event, the County's first point on appeal shows its incomprehension of all arguments presented to the Circuit Court concerning bondholders as indispensible parties, and attempts to mislead this Court by omitting the substance of the Circuit Court's Ruling.

The County is solely relying on the narrow issue of collateral estoppel, alleging that the State and Intervenors previously litigated the issue of misleading information contained in the Official Statement (CB 17-25). However, the County has totally failed in its duty to preserve this issue for appeal.

At no time did the County present the issue of collateral estoppel concerning the alleged previous litigation of the bonds as being improperly represented and sold as IDB's. Specifically, in its Memorandum in Response and Opposition to Defendant's Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings, the County asserted several points opposing the State's Motion, but did not discuss collateral estoppel (CA 33). Furthermore, there was no discussion of this issue at the hearing on the Motions to Dismiss (SA 10).

The only time the County discussed collateral estoppel was in its memorandum in Support of Validations, which mentioned other areas of law and fact not germane to this appeal (CA 11, pp. 13-16).

It is a rule of long standing that on appeal, the Supreme Court will confine itself to a review of those questions, and only those questions which were before the trial court. Lipe v. City of Miami, 141 So.2d 738 (Fla. 1962). Matters not presented to the trial court by the pleadings or ruled on will not be considered by the Supreme Court on appeal. Id.; <u>Dober v.</u> <u>Worrell</u>, 401 So.2d 1322 (Fla. 1981). Specifically, the failure of a party to raise the issue of estoppel at the trial level precludes it from raising that issue on appeal. Clearwater Key Ass'n-South Beach v. Thacker, 431 So.2d 641

(Fla. 2nd DCA 1983). Therefore, this Court should disregard the County's Point I in its entirety.

#### C. There Was Never a Prior Litigation of this Issue.

However, assuming by a long stretch of the imagination that this issue is now properly before this Court, there is no merit to the contention that there was a previous litigation of that narrow issue.

The County aptly points out that there must have been a previous <u>litigation</u> of the issue in order for the doctrine of collateral estoppel to prevent a relitigation of the same issue (CB 17); <u>Mobil Oil Corporation v.</u> Shevin, 354 So.2d 372 (Fla. 1977). There was no prior litigation.

This Court, in 1985, took great pains to warn the County not to call the bonds IDB's when they were actually municipal revenue bonds, and stated clearly that "It is important to note at this point that we review only the issuance of revenue bonds by the County under section 166.111 . . . the County's authority to issue chapter 159 bonds is <u>not determined</u> at this time." <u>State v. Broward County</u>, 468 So.2d 965, 967 (Fla. 1985) (emphasis added). This Court specifically reserved judgment on the County's authority to issue IDB's by saying "Any such sale or lease which requires compliance with chapter 159 will be addressed at that time." 468 So.2d 969. Therefore, regardless of whether the State or Intervenors were attempting to litigate the chapter 159 issue, this Court specifically refused to consider that issue and consequently there was no prior litigation on which to base the doctrine of collateral estopped.

Furthermore, the State in 1984, did <u>not</u> raise the issue of the bonds being misleading as IDB's in either its initial brief or in its reply brief (SA 2, SA 3). The only time the State spelled out the improprieties on the face of the bonds and in the Official Statement, was in its Motion for Rehearing (CA 28), which was not properly brought before this Court.

This Court correctly disregarded without opinion, the IDB issue raised by the State in its Motion for Rehearing which issue had not been raised by the State's briefs and not preserved for appeal. <u>Fiesta Fashions, Inc. v.</u> <u>Capin</u>, 450 So.2d 1128 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984). The law is clear that an appellate court shall not consider an issue raised for the first time in a Motion for Rehearing. <u>Price Wise Buying Group v. Nuzum</u>, 343 So.2d 115 (Fla. 1st DCA 1977). Therefore, this Court ignored the State's improper argument in its Motion for Rehearing, and did not allow litigation of that issue (SA 4).

Also, although Intervenors did raise the IDB issue in its reply brief (CA 27), it was again not preserved for appeal nor argued by Intervenors in its initial brief, and properly disregarded by this Court.

An appellate court will not consider a point not preserved for appeal and raised for the first time in appellant's reply brief. <u>Zerwal v. State</u> <u>Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co.</u>, 3323 So.2d 645 (Fla. 3d DCA 1976). The purpose of a reply brief is to respond to issues contained in Appellee's answer brief, and an issue raised for the first time in a reply brief, will not be considered by the appellate court. <u>St. Regis Paper Co., v. Hill</u>, 198 So.2d 365 (Fla. 1st DCA 1967); <u>Pursell v. Sumter Electric Co-Operative</u>, <u>Inc.</u>, 169 So.2d 515 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1964). Therefore, this too was not litigated since it was appropriately disregarded by this Court.

> D. The County has Mislead this Court by Omitting the Substance of the Circuit Court's Ruling.

Contrary to the County's attempt show that the Circuit Court only considered the State's and Intervenors' allegations that the bonds are misleading as chapter 159 IDB's, the Circuit Court considered and ruled on substantial other grounds to require joinder of bondholders.

Intervenor's, in its Amended Motion to Dismiss asserted that bondholders rights are substantially being detrimentally changed by the attempted

conversion from F.S. 166 bonds to IDB's and partially listed the important changes of the obligors on the bonds, the pledge of revenue to pay off the bonds and the security for payment of the bonds (CA 10). Further, Intervenors alleged that the tax free status of the bonds is not available to the new bonds because the IDB's obligors are companies that were not in existence at the time of the prior bond issue, the IDB's exceed the TEFRA and other federal tax exempt bond limits for issues after January, 1985, and the new obligors were not mentioned in the 1984 Resolutions. Id.

The State, in its Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings, generally alleged that the Resolutions the bondholders relied on did not inform them of the obligors on the bonds, nor of the contractual obligations of a myriad of companies, corporations, limited partnerships, etc., nor of the County's pledge to pay tipping fees, to collect user fees, to pay a deficit from revenues not ad valorum taxes, or any other provision of the instant Complaint for Validation including the County's obligation to purchase the projects from the vendors in certain circumstances (CA 13). The State further argued that the sources pledged in the resolutions are not the sources of revenues pledged in the instant Complaint for Validation, thus affecting the fair market value of the bonds. Id. None of the foregoing arguments were or could have been litigated in the prior bond validation proceeding or the appeal therefrom.

The Circuit Court was also presented with the argument that the bonds State they are issued under and pursuant to . . . Part II, chapter 159, Florida Statutes, and also state that all acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be preformed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, have happened, exist and have been performed (CA 10; SA 5, pp. 41, 43 - Series A Bonds; pp. 85, 87 - Series B Bonds; pp. 130, 132 - Series C Bonds). The State further argued that Bondholders were not told at the time

they purchased the bonds, of the necessity of subsequent court approval before the bonds they hold can be considered to be IDB's (CA 10; SA 5 in its entirety).

The Circuit Court, in its Order Granting Motions to Dismiss, spelled out most issues raised as its justification for requiring joinder of the bondholders (CA 35).

However, the County completely disregarded the valid issues and filed its Motion for Rehearing, misinterpreting the Circuit Court ruling (CA 17), forcing the State to respond and explain in detail the challenges it had concisely made in its Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings, and attached to this Response substantial portions of relevant pleadings and records (SA 12), which attachments the County has conspicuously failed to include in its appendix (CA 18), and which will be discussed in detail in the State's argument on Point II.

Therefore, the doctrine of collateral estoppel does not apply to the instant proceeding, was not presented to the trial court and consequently was not preserved for appeal. The County's Point I should be disregarded or found to be meritless.

#### POINT II

THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY DETERMINED THAT BONDHOLDERS ARE INDISPENSIBLE PARTIES TO THIS VALIDATION PROCEEDING.

A. Standard of Review.

This issue is the only valid one raised by the County, for it is the sole decision of the Circuit Court to be reviewed (CA 35; CA 1). However, the County has taken deliberate pains to mask the basis for the Circuit Court's decision, by focusing on only one of several other substantial allegations tending to show how bondholders' rights are potentially affected. The County's objective, throughout its brief, is to argue in many ways how it was inappropriate for the Circuit Court to consider the allegation of fraudulent issuance of the 1984 municipal revenue bonds. However, the Circuit Court was presented with arguments by the State and Intervenors that go far beyond the allegations of material misrepresentations on the face of the bonds purporting them to be IDB's (CA 10; CA 13; SA 10; SA 12), and the Court expressed its own concerns throughout the proceedings concerning issues essential to the necessity of joining bondholders (CA 7; CA 9; SA 10).

Although the Circuit Court did point to the fraudulent issuance argument as an example of the substantial and serious allegations made (CA 19), and found that the State had presented prima facie evidence to support that allegation (SA 15), this Court should not ignore the Order being appealed (CA 1) which attempts to make final the Order Granting Motions to Dismiss (CA 35).

The decision of the Circuit Court to dismiss the cause <u>sub judice</u> for failure to join bondholders as indispensible parties comes before this Honorable Court clothed with a presumption of correctness. <u>Applegate v.</u> <u>Barnett Bank of Tallahassee</u>, 377 So.2d 1050 (Fla. 1979). This decision cannot be disturbed absent a showing that there was no competent evidence

sustaining it. <u>Baker v. Baker</u>, 394 So.2d 465 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981). The County has failed to even deal with all facts before the Circuit Court and consequently has not refuted them, nor shown or alleged the requisite abuse of discretion necessary for this Court to reverse. <u>Price v. Morgan</u>, 436 So.2d 1116 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983).

Furthermore, although the Order Granting Motions to Dismiss does not spell out every allegation made by the State or Intervenors as the reasons for the Court's decision, all evidence and facts applicable to that issue should be considered by this appellate court in determining whether to uphold the Circuit Court's judgment. <u>Vandergriff v. Vandergriff</u>, 456 So.2d 464 (Fla. 1984); Johnson v. Davis, 449 So.2d 344 (Fla. 3d DCA 1984).

### B. Bondholders Meet Defination of Indispensible Parties.

The County quotes (CB 32) this Honorable Court to show that indispensible parties:

are necessary parties so essential to a suit that no final decision can be rendered without their joinder. This is in contrast to other necessary parties, who have an interest in a suit and ought to be made parties, but who do not have to be joined before a final decision may be rendered.

Hertz Corporation v. Piccolo, 453 So.2d 12, 14 n.3 (Fla. 1984). However, conveniently and purposefully, the County does not include the rest of this Court's language which says:

A final decision will bind those parties joined in the suit, but will have no effect on the rights of necessary but unjoined parties.

Id. (emphasis added). Conversely, an indispensible party is one whose rights will be affected by the final decision rendered.

This defination is the one relied upon by the State (SA 12, p.7) when it argued that an indispensible party is one whose rights/interests will necessarily be affected by the Court's judgment, and who is materially interested,

legally or equitably, in the subject matter of the suit. U.S. v. State, 179
So.2d 890 (Fla. 3d DCA 1965); Degge v. First State Bank of Eustis, 199 So.
564 (Fla. 1941); Kline v. Kline, 134 So. 546 (Fla. 1931).

#### C. Bondholders' Rights/Interests are to be Litigated in this Validation Proceeding.

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